ZEBULON
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
February 13, 2024
6:00pm

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. SCHOOL RECOGNITION

A. Wakelon Elementary School
i Naudia Newkirk — Student
ii. Christa Vick — Teacher

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. RECOGNITIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS
A. Police Recognition
B. Family, Career and Community Leaders of America Week
C. Career and Technical Education Month

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

All wishing to speak must sign up prior to 5:50pm. The comment period will be no longer than
15 minutes with speakers having three minutes each to speak. No speaker can speak on a public
hearing item or any item that would need to be discussed under Closed Session. Speakers
cannot give their minutes to another speaker. If you would like to submit comments to be read
into the record at the meeting, please send comments, of 400 words or less, to Stacie Paratore
at sparatore@townofzebulon.org by 3:00pm on February 13, 2024.

6. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Minutes

i.  October 19, 2023 — Work Session

ii. November 6, 2023 — Regular Meeting
iii. ~ November 16, 2023 — Work Session
iv.  December 4, 2023 — Regular Meeting
v. January 8, 2024 — Regular Meeting
vi. January 18, 2024 — Work Session

B. Finance
i.  Wake County Tax Report — November 2023

C. Governing Board Meeting Schedule


mailto:sparatore@townofzebulon.org

6. OLD BUSINESS
A. Personnel Policy — Sponsor Miles/Co-Sponsor Harrison
B. Assistant Town Manager Position — Sponsor Miles/Co-Sponsor Harrison
C. Branding Update — Sponsor Miles/Co-Sponsor Harrison
D. Main Street MOU and Bylaws — Sponsor Davis/Co-Sponsor Miles

7. NEW BUSINESS

A. General
i.  Board Appointments

B. Public Works
i.  Carolina Coastal Railroad
a. Memorandum of Understanding
b. Ordinance 2024-31
ii. Construction Closeout Coordinator Budget Amendment — Ordinance 2024-32

C. Fire
i.  Zebulon South Fire Station Assessment Budget Amendment — Ordinance 2024-33

D. General
i.  Bond Referendum Funding Bond Counsel — Ordinance 2024-27
ii.  Drone Purchase — Ordinance 2024-28
iii.  Police Station HVAC Replacement — Ordinance 2024-29
iv.  Professional Services Budget Amendment — Ordinance 2024-30

8. BOARD COMMENTS

9. MANAGERS REPORT

A. Development Update
B. Monthly Financial Report (attached as addendum)

10. CLOSED SESSION
As allowed by GS § 143-318.11 (a)(6) — for the purpose of personnel discussions.

11. ADJOURN



1003 N. Arendell Avenue
E B 0 N Zebulon, NC 27597
2 : l ] I i 919.823.1800

www.townofzebulon.org

NORTH CAROLINA

Proclamation

FFCLA WEEK IN THE
TOWN OF ZEBULON

WHEREAS, Family, Career and Community Leaders of America (FCCLA), the national nonprofit,
family-focused, intra-curricular student organization for Family and Consumer Sciences students
through grade 12, helps youth assume their roles in society through Family and Consumer
Sciences education in the areas of personal growth, family life, college readiness, career
exploration, leadership, and community involvement; and

WHEREAS, the organization extends classroom learning through chapter service projects that
develop leadership and employability skills, and helps young men and women learn how to plan,
make decisions, and carry out and evaluation programs of action through working with other
youth and adults within their school, community, and state; and

WHEREAS, FCCLA offers members an opportunity to work together for common purposes for the
improvement of themselves, as well as their families, careers, and communities; and

WHEREAS, the week of February 12 through 16, 2024 has been designated national FCCLA Week,

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Glenn L. York, Mayor of the Town of Zebulon, hereby proclaim the week
beginning February 12, 2024 as national FCCLA Week in the Town of Zebulon and urge all citizens
to acquaint themselves with the activities and values of Family, Career and Community Leaders
of America, to show interest in, and provide support and encouragement to the students who
are working to achieve knowledge and experience that will help prepare them for future
responsibilities as active and concerned adult members of society.

i Aot
\\\;\‘\ oF 2580 ¥ Lrm

S
&

\\\ 00000y, ( ////, _
§\\&Q aP0.94 %’/E Glenn L. York Mayor/
S | sean 7} E
?’/ %, 1907 .'?' §
%2, Qp ttureriies &
’4,,///’9771 CARO\::\?\§ Lisp M. Markland, CMC — Town Clerk



1003 N. Arendell Avenue
E B O N Zebulon, NC 27597
2 : ( ] l J 919.823.1800

NORTH CAROLINA www.townofzebulon.org

Proclamation

Whereas, the Association for Career and Technical Education has designated February 1-29, 2024, as Career
and Technical Education Month; and

WHEREAS: CTE offers students the opportunity to gain the academic, technical and employability skills necessary for
true career readiness; and

WHEREAS: students in CTE programs participate in authentic, meaningful experiences that improve the quality of
their education and increase their engagement and achievement; and

WHEREAS: CTE provides students with career exploration opportunities earlier in their educational experience,

which enables them to make informed and beneficial decisions about their academic coursework and pursue
established programs of study and career pathways; and

WHEREAS: leaders from business and industry nationwide report increasing challenges related to addressing the
skills gap and connecting qualified professionals with careers in critical and growing CTE-related fields, such as
advanced manufacturing, cybersecurity, energy, health care, information technology, and transportation; and

WHEREAS: CTE prepares students for these and other fulfilling careers by offering integrated programs of study that
link secondary and postsecondary education and lead to the attainment of industry-recognized credentials; and

WHEREAS: CTE programs ensure that employers have access to a qualified and thriving workforce, ensuring our
Mation is a strong and competitive economy;

Therefore, be it resolved that, I, Glenn L. York, Mayor of the Town of Zebulon, do hereby proclaim February
2024 as Career and Technical Education Month.

Signed this the 5% day of February 2024.

g, W % %Jé
S OF 26,7,

Glenn L. York - Mayor

2
= : O..'- .%
= §E/§EAL .
Z 4 e S
o e A i
‘?//019 Yeeuses® Oé\\{{\
//

L|sa Markland CMC - Town Clerk




Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Work Session
Minutes
October 19, 2023

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Jessica Harrison, Shannon Baxter, Larry Loucks, Joe
Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works, Bobby Fitts-Finance,
Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Shannon Johnson-Community and Economic
Development, Teresa Piner-Main Street Coordinator, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Eric Vernon-
Attorney

Absent: Beverly Clark
Mayor York called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve the agenda. There
was no discission and the motion passed unanimously.

MAIN STREET PROGRAM: MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTAND AND BYLAWS
Joe Moore gave an overview of the Main Street Program presentation dealing with the Memorandum of
Understand (“MOU”) and bylaws.

Teresa Piner explained the MOU and bylaws and spoke about the goals of the MOU. The responsibilities
of the Town and non-profits were detailed. Mrs. Piner presented the Memorandum of Understanding and
Bylaws as recommended by the Main Street Advisory Board.

The recommended bylaws were detailed. The focus areas were:

Purpose and Objectives
Officers, Elections and Boards
Meetings

Finances

Indemnification

Staff gave information on each focus area.

The next steps were to adopt the bylaws, elect officers, file non-profit status, begin municipal service
district study, develop internal documents, and a 2024 downtown masterplan.

The Board was presented with sample questions on the bylaws and MOUs and there was discussion
about the Board preferences. There was consensus to have the Main Street Designation with a maximum
of 11 members on the advisory board. The Board discussed the meeting attendance requirements, conflict
of interest policy and financial support.

Commissioner Miles suggested having an elected official as a representative on the Main Street Board.

The Board was given drafts of the Bylaws and MOU to review and mark up before their next wgrk
session.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
October 19, 2023

N. ARENDELL IMPROVEMENTS: LOCALLY ASSISTED PROJECT PROGRAM (LAPP)
GRANT - RESOLUTION 2024-09

Michael Clark presented the resolution authorizing the submittal for a grant to the Capital Area
Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) for road construction. In 2015, the Town of Zebulon
successfully applied for a Locally Administered Projects Program (LAPP) grant from CAMPO for
construction of safety related road improvements on North Arendell Avenue. These improvements
included the construction of curb, gutters, and sidewalk, maintaining two lanes of traffic in each
direction, and the construction of a median on N. Arendell to limit left turns from driveways located
between Pearces Road and Dogwood Drive.

The total cost of the project was estimated to be $1,195,000, with CAMPO covering 80% ($956,000)
and the Town spending 20% ($239,000). Due to scope expansions to tie-into new development
widenings, exceptional inflationary increases in labor and material costs, and delays from unexpected
and complex right-of-way acquisitions, the estimated cost of this original project was $10,150,000. The
project was shown on a map.

There was a question if the LAPP grant could be re-written with the increased total. Michael Clark stated
once it was approved it was locked in for the grant funding.

There was discussion about a bond referendum to finance the project. Joe Moore gave information about
financial options and resources.

Commissioners Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Loucks to adopt Resolution 2024-09
to authorize staff to submit a LAPP grant request to CAMPO of an 80/20 split to fund the expanded N.
Arendell roadway project. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

ANGEL PRINTS’ AWARENESS WALK — RESOLUTION 2024-08

Joe Moore explained the Board adopted Resolution 2023-25 on May 1, 2023 authorizing Angel Prints
Corporation to host an awareness walk at Town Hall and waived associated fees. The Resolution was
written for the event to be hosted on October 14, 2023, but the event had to be postponed due to weather
conditions. After reviewing availability of the supporting vendors and partners, the organization seeks
to hold their event on October 28, 2023.

Commissioner Miles made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter to approve Resolution 2024-08.
There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Miles made a motion, second my Commissioner Harrison to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13® day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Larry Loucks, Jessica Harrison, Shannon Baxter,
Beverly Clark, Joe Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works,
Jacqui Boykin-Police, Chris Perry-Fire, Sheila Long-Parks & Recreation, Bobby Fitts-Finance,
Michael Clark-Planning, Adam Culpepper-Planning, Chris Medina-Planning, Eric Vernon-Town
Attorney

Mayor York called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Miles.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor York removed Health Insurance Renewal from the agenda and added Manager’s review
under New Business.

Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve the agenda
as amended. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

SCHOOL RECOGNITION
Mayor York recognized student Daniel Antonio Velasquez and teacher Ashely Smith both from
Zebulon Middle School.

PROCLAMATIONS
The Proclamation for MacLellan Bagpipes was read by Mayor York.

The Proclamation for Operation Green Light was read by Mayor York.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Bruce Davis wanted more information about the lot near his home on Gannon Avenue and
information about the Town’s workforce diversity.

Desiree Blakeney spoke about the mission of her company DE Whitley Operations, LLC and asked
for the Board’s support.

CONSENT

A. Minutes
Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the minutes of
the September 21, 2023 work session. There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the minutes of
the October 9, 2023 Joint Public Hearing. There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

B. Finance
Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the Wake County
tax report for August 2023. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

C. Public Works
Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve Resolution 2024-
10 - Sidney Creek Phase 1D Infrastructure Acceptance. There was no discussion and the motion
passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS
A. Administration
i. Remote Meeting Policy (Ordinance 2024-12)
Joe Moore explained at the regular meeting on September 11, 2023, the Board requested the draft
Remote Meetings procedures to be further refined which were included in the agenda packet. The
Board could adopt the procedure and the Ordinance to budget $15,000 to transform the Council
Chambers to be compatible for virtual meetings.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the word usage in section 2 and Attorney Eric Vernon
confirmed the intent would not change.

Commissioner Miles asked for an itemized list of the costs. Lisa Markland confirmed the list was
provided to the Board at their last meeting.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the Remote
Meeting Policy. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Loucks to approve Ordinance
2024-12. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS
A. Planning
i.  Chamblee Lake Annexation (Ordinance 2024-19)
Adam Culpepper spoke about the annexation and zoning process.

The standards under section 2.2.2.G for an annexation were:
1. Owner approval
2. Services can be provided
3. Debt obligations
4. Public Health, safety and welfare

The standards under section 2.2.6.K for a rezoning were:
Health, safety and welfare

Appropriate for location

Reasonable in the public interest

Concept plan consistent with regulations

Other relevant factors

Nhwh =

2



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

Adam stated the request was to annex 136 acres located at 1509 Chamblee Road and was owned
by Jim Edwards. The public hearing notification was done in accordance with required standards.
The annexation standards were reviewed again.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the building materials for the homes. Mr. Culpepper stated the
Board could not discuss the planned development submittal in the annexation process.

There was a question about the Board’s choices for annexation. Adam Culpepper stated the Board
could approve the annexation, continue, or deny. Commissioner Baxter wanted more details about
approval of the annexation with time restrictions. Eric Vernon stated the state statute allowed for
deferral of annexation to a fiscal year.

Commissioner Loucks spoke about the Traffic Impact Analysis (“TIA”) showing a problem area
at Old US 264 and 39. Adam Culpepper stated the TIA was part of the planned development and
could be discussed during the planned development discussion.

Ashley Honeycutt Terrazas, the attorney representing the property owner, spoke about the planned
annexation and that the property owner would like the Town to receive the impact fees instead of
the County.

ii.  Public Hearing
Mayor York declared the public hearing open.

Mayor York asked if anyone wished to speak in favor. There were none.
Mayor York asked if anyone wished to speak in opposition.

James Fountain of Perry Ridge Court spoke about his concerns on traffic, infrastructure and
emergency response times.

Mayor York asked if anyone wished to speak neither for nor against but had a comment. There
were none.

Mayor York closed the public hearing.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Loucks to approve Ordinance
2024-19 - Chamblee Lake Annexation.

Commissioner Baxter stated she wanted to defer the annexation to June 30, 2025 to give time to
think about infrastructure improvements.

Commissioner Miles stated the additional time would give Sidney Creek time to build out.

Commissioner Loucks stated building would not begin until possibly the summer of 2024 and
spoke about the work that would need to be done before construction started.



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

Adam Culpepper stated the Town could not approve construction drawings until the annexation
occurred.

“There was no further discussion and the motion passed with a vote 4 to 1 with Commissioners
Clark, Miles, Harrison and Loucks voting in favor and Commssioner Baxter in opposition.

iii.  PD 2023-01 Chamblee Lake
Adam Culpepper reviewed the planned development standards.

The standards under section 2.2.24.J were:
i.  Health, safety and welfare
ii.  Appropriate for location
ili.  Reasonable in the public interest
iv.  Other relevant factors

The Planned Development request was for a residential neighborhood to be rezoned from its
current zoning of R-30 Wake County to PD. The property located at 1509 Chamblee Road was
136 acres and owned by Jim Edwards. The aerial map, zoning map, future land use plan, timeline
of activity, concept plan and proposed elevations were shown.

The proposed road improvements were at the following locations:
e Chamblee Road and Site Drive #1
Chamblee Road and Site Drive #2
Chamblee Road and Site Drive #3
Perry Curtis Road and Site Drive #4
Perry Curtis Road and NC 96
Wake County Line Road and NC 39
Perry Curtis Road/Wake County Line Road and Chamblee Road
NC 39 and Old US 264 Hwy

® o e o o o o

The applicant earned 68 points under the Utility Allocation Policy with items including a fishing
dock on the pond, a walking trail around the pond and exercise equipment, fountains as part of the
stormwater SCM’s, a pollinator garden, installation of native shade trees, a pocket park, and a
resort style pool.

The applicant made changes after hearing comments during the October Joint Public Hearing. The
changes included adding covered seating at the mobile food vendor area, pedestrian crossing on
Chamblee Road, and appointing residents to the HOA Advisory Board.

Adam Culpepper reviewed the standards for a zoning map amendment under section 2.2.24.J:
1. Health, safety and welfare
ii.  Appropriate for location
ili.  Reasonable in the public interest
iv.  Other relevant factors

10



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

The Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval at their October meeting and staff
recommended approval of Ordinance 2024-21.

Commissioner Baxter asked staff to explain the legislature change on the requirement of what can
be asked of building materials.

Michael Clark spoke about the change and when municipalities could ask for particular conditions
for one and two-family residential structures. NC GS §160D allowed municipalities to encourage
developers to accept conditions specific to architecture styles and material, but could not require
them without developer’s approval.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the homes that were built six feet apart would be built using flame
resistant materials. Michael Clark stated all the homes in the proposed neighborhood would be
built with hardie plank siding or comparable materials.

Commissioner Loucks asked who would be responsible for monitoring the intersections. Adam
Culpepper stated it would be a joint effort between the Town and the developer and a condition
could be added to the motion.

Mayor York stated there would be a five-minute recess.
The meeting reconvened at 7:16pm.

Ashley Terrazas Honeycutt gave a project overview and reviewed the Utility Allocation Policy
updates. Some points highlighted included: removed points for 10% of townhomes deed-restricted
affordable for families earning 80% AMI, an HOA Advisory Board resident participation,
pedestrian beacon at the Chamblee Rd crosswalk, and a mobile vendor pavilion. There was
discussion about how the proposed development met the Town’s goals and policies from the
Comprehensive Plan.

Commissioner Baxter stated using area median income (“AMTI”) for affordable housing did not
represent affordable housing for the Town of Zebulon and suggested the developer add three more
affordable housing units or three of the twelve be sold at Zebulon’s AML Ashley Terrazas
Honeycutt explained how the HUD AMI numbers were calculated and the metric that was used.

Commissioner Harrison thanked the developer for working on bringing affordable housing to
residents but wanted the affordable housing to be throughout the neighborhood instead in just one
area.

Commissioner Loucks asked if the developer would be agreeable to the time requirement on the
intersection monitoring to be 25%, 50% and 75% of buildout. Ashley Terrazas Honeycutt was
agreeable.

Commissioner Miles asked how the HOA representative would be chosen. Cameron Jones stated
it would be by volunteer and votes. It was asked if the developer would be agreeable to having two
representatives at 25% build out. Mr. Jones stated he was not against it.

5
11



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 6, 2023

Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to approve PD 2023-01
Chamblee Lake with the conditions of traffic monitoring at 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% buildout
and to add two HOA Board members at 25%, two more at 50% and two more at 75%. There was
no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

B. Police
i.  Text Amendment — Town Code §98.02: “Functions, Events, or Dances where alcohol
is served”: (Ordinance 2024-20)
Jacqui Boykin explained there were questions from a business owner about hiring off duty officers
for events where alcohol was sold. The Department’s practice was not consistent with the Town’s
ordinance and there were concerns about officer safety. The ordinance was revised to reflect
current practice and to make it compliant with best practice for officer safety.

Some questions were raised by Commissioner Miles about why motels were excluded, the impact
on special events, and Chief Boykin responded to the questions explaining the intent of the
ordinance. An exception could be added to adjust the number of officers for large scale events per
the special event committee’s recommendation.

Commissioner Baxter asked Chief Boykin to polish up the text amendment to bring back before
the Board.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to defer Town Code §98.02:
“Functions, Events, or Dances where alcohol is served”: (Ordinance 2024-20) to the December 4,
2023 meeting. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

C. Administration
1.  Manager Review
Commissioner Miles made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to increase the manager’s
salary by 2% effective August 30, 2023. There was no discussion and the motion passed with a
vote 3 to 2 with Commissioners Loucks, Harrison, and Miles voting in favor and Commissioners
Clark and Baxter voting in opposition.

BOARD COMMENTS
Commissioner Baxter spoke about upcoming events including Election Day, Veteran’s Day,
Mighty Con, Thanksgiving Bingo and Candy Cane Lane and recognized promotions in the Fire
and Police Departments.

Commissioner Miles spoke about the upcoming election, Veteran’s Day and Operation Greenlight
Commissioner Clark encouraged everyone to vote in the election.

Commissioner Harrison thanked everyone who came to the meeting, reminded everyone to vote
and stated the Rotary Club would put out flags on November 7 at 4:00pm and needed volunteers.

Commissioner Loucks stated the Economic Development meeting was scheduled for November 9
at Zebulon United Methodist Church at 5:30pm.

6
12



Board of Commissioners

Minutes

November 6, 2023

Maybr York reminded everyone to vote.

MANAGER’S REPORT
Michael Clark introduced Planner 1 Chris Medina.

Adam Culpepper gave a monthly development update.

Lisa Markland gave an HR update.

Commissioner Miles asked about the Program Coordinator and if the Board could give input on
the Town Clerk position. Mayor York stated there was a deadline to provide input for the Town
Clerk and it had passed. Lisa Markland gave details of the Program Coordinator position.

Bobby Fitts reported the following budget transfers:

Property & Project Management:

Moved $10,000 from Sidewalk Cleaning to Salaries;
Moved $10,000 from Equipment Shed to Fuel Station

Engineering:
Moved $10,000 from Salaries to Professional Services

Commissioner Baxter asked what money was transferred to professional services. Bobby Fitts
explained the transfer was for LBJ and Associates for development review.

Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13 day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

13



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Work Session
Minutes
November 16, 2023

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Beverly Clark, Shannon Baxter, Larry Loucks, Joe
Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works, Bobby Fitts-Finance,
Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Sheila Long-Parks and Recreation, Kaleb Harmon-
Communications, Sam Slater-Attorney

Absent: Jessica Harrison
Mayor York called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to approve the agenda. There
was no discission and the motion passed unanimously.

PARTF GRANT ACCEPTANCE
Joe Moore gave an overview of the items to be presented at the meeting.

Sheila Long gave an overview of Little River Park: Phase I and the PARTF grant process. The Town
was awarded $500,000 in PARTF funds and the Board allocated $598,050 in April 2023 to match the
grant.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to accept the PARTF grant
awarded at $500,000 and authorize the Town Manager to sign the implementation documents.

Mayor York thanked staff for their work on the grant application.
There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

HEALTH INSURANCE RENEWAL
Joe Moore recognized the team that worked on the insurance renewal and the background of the
Town’s insurance expenses was detailed.

The original insurance renewal had a significant increase. The Town’s insurance broker, Independent
Broker Advisors (“IBA”) were able to negotiate the renewal down to a 15% increase and a $55,000
wellness grant. The current and proposed premiums were reviewed and the reasons for the price
increases were explained. Some of the reasons stated were medical industry trends, high-cost claims
increased significantly, new orthodontia benefit for growing, younger workforce. Only 11% of
employees had met the yearly insurance deductible showing the deductible could be increased and
would not affect most employees.

The Board was presented their insurance options at the October retreat and were interested in retaining
the current carrier and coverage as well as receiving more information on how to transition to a level
funded plan.

14



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
November 16, 2023

The employee expense was reviewed with the current rate and the proposed rates for Plan A and Plan
B. Employee wellness coupled with a level-funded plan was the best way to control costs, reinvest
savings, sustain program and incentivize wellness.

Commissioner Miles asked how staff would know about the biometric screening. Lisa Markland
stated there would be emails and flyers for employees to sign up.

Commissioner Baxter asked how much savings the Town would have seen with a level funded plan
in 2023. Joe Moore explained it was difficult to know since we could not see the claims but would be
able to see some of that information if the Town transitioned into a level funded plan. Alex
Dorberstein spoke about how that information was attained and the need to protect employees’
privacy.

Staff recommended maintaining dependent premiums at the 2023 rates, beginning transition to a self-
insured plan and incentivizing wellness participation. The goals for the level funded plan were to
expand the wellness program and foster a healthier workforce. Town savings should be reinvested
into health insurance and wellness for a heathier workforce.

Alex Doberstein gave details about the premium amounts when transitioning to self-funded. The

Town would contribute to cover the increase of costs for dependent care to match the premiums for
2023.

Details of how the Town would incentivize wellness participation were detailed. Lisa Markland spoke
about the wellness activity options and how to verify an employee’s participation.

Commissioner Miles asked how much maternity costs would be under the insurance plan. Alex
Dorberstein stated maternity care would fall under the deductible and co-insurance but would remain
the same whether the Town was fully insured or level funded.

Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter to accept Blue Cross Blue
Shield’s proposal to provide a level-funded health insurance plan.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the Board could receive an update on how many employees were
participating in the wellness program halfway through the year.

There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Loucks made a motion, second my Commissioner Clark to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13™ day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor
SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Minutes
December 4, 2023

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Amber Davis, Jessica Harrison, Shannon Baxter,
Beverly Clark, Joe Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works,
Jacqui Boykin-Police, Chris Perry-Fire, Sheila Long-Parks & Recreation, Bobby Fitts-Finance,
Michael Clark-Planning, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Eric Vernon-Town Attorney

Mayor York called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.

ORGANIZATION

A. Swearing In
Lisa Markland swore in newly elected Commissioners Jessica Harrison, Amber Davis and
Shannon Baxter.

B. Election of Mayor Pro Tem
Commissioner Clark nominated Commissioner Harrison for Mayor Pro Tem.

Commissioner Davis nominated Commissioner Miles for Mayor Pro Tem.

Commissioners Clark, Harrison and Baxter voted for Commissioner Harrison as Mayor Pro Tem
and Commissioner Miles and Davis voted for Commissioner Miles as Mayor Pro Tem.

Commissioner Harrison was elected as Mayor Pro Tem.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The pledge of allegiance was led by the Boy Scouts.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Baxter asked to have Insurance discussion added to the agenda.

Commissioner Harrison asked to table the 18-month schedule to the December 14, 2023 work
session.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to approve the agenda as
amended. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

RECOGNITIONS

A. Zebulon Elementary School
Mayor York recognized student Emily Keel and teacher Ashley Lubischer both from Zebulon
Elementary School.

B. Proclamation
Mayor York read a proclamation recognizing outgoing Commissioner Larry Loucks.

16



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
December 4, 2023

C. Government 101 Graduation
Joe Moore read the names of those who completed the Government 101 modules.

PRESENTATION
A. FY 2023 Audit
Bobby Fitts introduced LeAnn Bagasala from Mauldin & Jenkins Auditors.

LeAnn Bagasala explained the audit process and who was involved. Information was presented
on the value and makeup of the Town’s tax base, the available savings, and outstanding debt.

Bobby Fitts spoke about the highlights from the financial report for the management discussion,
which included the analysis, balance sheet, schedule of revenues, expenditure, changes in fund
balance, and statistical section.

Commissioner Baxter asked where citizens could get a copy of the financial report. Bobby Fitts
stated it was on the Town’s website under the finance page.

The financial report would be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association
Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in finance reporting. The Town has received the award
for 30 consecutive years.

PUBLIC COMMENT
George Roa congratulated those who were elected, thanked the Police and Fire Departments, and
spoke about concerns about speeding on Arendell Avenue.

CONSENT

A. Minutes
Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the minutes
of the October 2, 2023 regular meeting. There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.

B. Finance
Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the Wake
County tax report for September 2023. There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve vehicle
repairs — appropriation of insurance proceeds (Ordinance 2024-21A). There was no discussion
and the motion passed unanimously.

C. Parks and Recreation
Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the 2024
Street Closures for Event (Resolution 2024-11). There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.

17



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
December 4, 2023

D. Public Works
Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve Sidney
Creek Phase 1C — Infrastructure Acceptance (Resolution 2024-12). There was no discussion and
the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve Sidney
Creek Phase 2 — Infrastructure Acceptance (Resolution 2024-13). There was no discussion and
the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve Barrington
Phase 2G — Infrastructure Acceptance (Resolution 2024-14). There was no discussion and the
motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve 712 N.
Arendell Avenue Town Homes — Infrastructure Acceptance (Resolution 2024-15). There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

OLD BUSINESS
A. Police
i. Text Amendment — Town Code §98.02: “Functions, Events, or Dances where alcohol
is served”: (Ordinance 2024-20)
Staff stated more research needed to be done on the text amendment and asked for the item to be
tabled.

Commissioner Miles made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to table Text Amendment —
Town Code §98.02: “Functions, Events, or Dances where alcohol is served”: (Ordinance 2024-
20). There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS
A. General
i.  Professional Services Contract — Budget Amendment (Ordinance 2024-22)
Chris Ray presented the budget amendment to fund hiring a third-party engineering firm to assist
with the workload of accepting development constructed infrastructure.

Commissioner Baxter asked if the Department needed a new hire to help with the workload.
Chris Ray stated he had spoken with the Town Manager about the immediate need for help and
would return before the Board with a recommendation in the near future.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve Ordinance
2024-22. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

ii.  Insurance Discussion
Commissioner Baxter stated the Board had agreed that anyone who wanted to shop for their own
insurance in the open market would receive the same amount if they were to take insurance from
the Town.

18



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
December 4, 2023

Joe Moore stated there were budget implications and suggested directing staff to perform a fiscal
analysis for the next regular meeting.

Commissioner Baxter stated there was enough money budgeted to disburse the funds to each
employee. Mr. Moore stated open enrollment was currently open and would affect the amount of
budget money available and a 100% reimbursement would cost more to account for taxes.

Lisa Markland explained the Town’s opt out policy and that the marketplace was not a group
plan.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to direct staff to do an
analysis on the 100% insurance opt out rate for the January 8, 2024 regular meeting.

Commissioner Harrison asked why the additional information was needed and Commissioner
Baxter explained why she wanted more information. Lisa Markland stated the more people who
opted out of the insurance policy did not help the Town as a whole.

There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

BOARD COMMENTS
Commissioner Davis stated it was an honor and a privilege to be on the Board and will do right
by the Town.

Commissioner Harrison was thankful to serve on the Board and reminded everyone about the
upcoming Deck the Hallz event.

Commissioner Baxter stated she was excited to be re-clected, spoke about winter preparedness,
and gave condolences to the Ellis family for their loss.

Commissioner Clark was looking forward to working with her fellow Commissioners.

Commissioner Miles welcomed the elected officials and gave condolences for Vivian Ellis’
passing and to her family.

Mayor York gave condolences for Ralph Capps the Wake County CEO of the Boys and Girls
Club and Wake County Commissioner Dr. James West.

MANAGER’S REPORT
Michael Clark gave a monthly development update.

Lisa Markland gave an HR update.
Commissioner Baxter asked when the IT Director and Assistant Town Manager positions would

go live. Lisa Markland stated the IT Director would be posted in January and was not sure about
the date for the Assistant Town Manager position.

4
19



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
December 4, 2023

Bobby Fitts reported the following budget transfers:

Engineering:
Moved $10,000 from Salaries to Professional Services

Parks & Recreation:

Moved $10,000 from Salaries - $5,000 to Part-time Salaries (Programs/Events) and $5,000 to
Part-time Salaries (Athletics); Moved $5,000 from Contract Services to Part-time Salaries (Parks
Maintenance)

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to adjourn. There was
no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13" day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

20



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8, 2024

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Quentin Miles, Amber Davis, Jessica Harrison, Shannon Baxter,
Beverly Clark, Joe Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works,
Jacqui Boykin-Police, Chris Perry-Fire, Sheila Long-Parks & Recreation, Bobby Fitts-Finance,
Michael Clark-Planning, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Eric Vernon-Town Attorney

Mayor York called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Davis.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Commissioner Baxter asked to remove West Horton Street Drainage Project: Fund Transfer
(Ordinance 2024-26) from consent and to add clerk position, appointed boards, Gill Street Park,
and Horton Street House to the agenda.

Commissioner Davis asked to remove Tuition Assistance Program (Ordinance 2024-25) from
consent.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve the agenda as
amended. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

SCHOOL RECOGNITIONS

A. East Wake High School
Mayor York recognized student Caro Dorothy Pethos and teacher Lisa Gibson both from East
Wake High School.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No one signed up to speak.

OLD BUSINESS

A. Governing Board Meeting Schedule
Joe Moore stated the meeting schedule came before the Board at their December regular meeting
and some had conflicts with the mini retreat dates.

Commissioner Baxter stated she wanted to do two retreats instead of nine mini retreats, wanted a
team building component added for the Board and to revisit the schedule in December 2024.

Commissioner Harrison agreed two retreats would be more beneficial as well as a team building
exercise.

21



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8, 2024

Commissioner Miles stated he would be in a class on February 5, 2024 and would not be able to
attend the meeting. There was discussion about the regular February meeting being changed to
February 13, 2024.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Davis to adopt the regular meeting
schedule through January 6, 2025 with the amendment to move the February 5, 2024 meeting to
February 13, 2024 and for staff to bring back options for a retreat schedule.

Commissioner Harrison stated as long as there was a quorum then the meeting should take place.
It was not fair to the public and staff to continually change meeting dates to accommodate Board
members’ schedules.

There was no further discussion and the motion passed with a vote 4 to 1 with Commissioners
Baxter, Davis, Miles, and Harrison voting in favor and Commissioner Clark voting in opposition.

Joe Moore asked about the mini retreat schedule and if the Board wanted to keep the January 25,
2024 retreat.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to cancel the mini retreat
on January 25, 2024. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NEW BUSINESS
A. Parks and Recreation
i.  Park Acquisition (Ordinance 2024-23, Ordinance 2024-24 and Resolution 2024-16)
Sheila Long presented for the Board’s consideration to create a Park Acquisition Capital Project
Fund, allocate Recreation Impact Fees to that fund, and authorize staff to begin searching for
property in target acquisition zones.

As of November 17, 2023, the Town collected $4,676,000 in Recreation Impact Fees. Recreation
Impact fees could not be used to renovate existing amenities. The funds must be used to improve
the impact of growth on the existing level of service for parks.

Commissioner Baxter wanted to change the last sentence on Resolution 2024-16 from “staff will
return to the Board for approval of final purchase agreements” to “staff will return to the Board
after the search process concludes to discuss results, allocate funds and approve purchase
agreements.” Sheila Long stated staff would be looking at multiple sites and that it would be an
ongoing process. Staff was given direction at the Board’s mini retreat to always be looking for
opportunities that would be a best fit for Zebulon.

Commissioner Baxter stated the Board should be informed about the location and cost prior to the
letter of intent.

Mayor York stated the negotiation process would take place in closed session.

22



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8, 2024

Commissioner Miles asked if staff could move forward with a search if funds were not added to a
capital project fund. Sheila Long spoke about the challenges staff would face if a capital project
fund was not created.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve Ordinance
2024-23.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the difference between the ordinances. Bobby Fitts explained
the first ordinance established the capital project fund and the second ordinance appropriated the
funds from the impact fees to the capital project fund.

There was no further discussion and the motion failed with a vote 3 to 2 with Commissioners
Miles, Davis and Baxter voting in opposition and Commissioners Harrison and Clark voting in
favor.

Joe Moore stated there was no reason to consider the remaining items and staff would not initiate
looking for park property without adoption of the first ordinance.

B. Planning
i. Downtown Zebulon MOU and Bylaw Review
Teresa Piner spoke about the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and bylaws including
amendments and highlights. Staff gave review and feedback of the MOU and bylaws from the
October work session. The changes were reviewed. The Board selections with MSD would be a
minimum of nine members with three property owners, three business owners and three members
with a combination of downtown or abutting residents, Town representatives, County
representative, school representative, non-profit, civic group or faith-based group.

There was discussion about those in the MSD boundary being on Mainstreet Board. Ms. Piner
stated those in the MSD discount would be affected directly and want strong representation from
those in the boundary.

Commissioner Miles asked how others outside the boundary could have their voices heard. The
downtown master plan would start in the spring and would have people throughout the Town
participating.

Commissioner Baxter asked about the possibility of representation of a Town citizen and not just
a citizen living in the downtown or abutting area. Ms. Piner stated she would go back to the
Mainstreet Board for them to discuss others options and to see what other communities had done
in the past.

Commissioner Baxter made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to table the Downtown
Zebulon MOU and Bylaw Review for further discussion. There was no discussion and the motion
passed with a vote 4 to 1 with Commissioners Baxter, Miles, Davis and Clark in favor and
Commissioner Harrison in opposition.

C. Administration

23



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8, 2024

i.  Health Insurance opt-out
Joe Moore explained at the Board’s meeting on December 4, 2023, the Board requested staff
analyze the financial and policy impacts of offering a 100% equivalent of health insurance
premiums to those who “opt-out” of the Town’s health insurance coverage. Employees and Board
members insured by another eligible group plan, such as health coverage provided through
retirement or the employer of a spouse or parent, are offered an option out of the Town’s health
insurance coverage.

Commissioner Baxter stated the staff recommendation showed the value would be reduced from
the % payout. Joe Moore stated staff would bring forward an evaluation of the impact of reducing
the amount of the payout at the next insurance renewal. Commissioner Baxter asked for staff to
come back earlier if there was a plan to decrease the opt out value of the plan. Staff would bring
the information sooner if possible but was determined by when the insurance provider gave the
renewal information.

D. Finance
i. West Horton Street Drainage Project: Fund Transfer (Ordinance 2024-26)
Commissioner Baxter asked about the cost of the West Horton Street project. Bobby Fitts
explained the project was less than the $1.8 budgeted. If there were funds not spent they would be
rolled into fund balance. Commissioner Baxter asked if the money saved could be rolled into a
specific project. Staff explained that was possible but would not know the final cost until the
project was finished. When the project was closed out staff could recognize funds if the project
was under budget. The Board could decide to roll funds to a specific project at that time.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to approve Ordinance 2024-
26.

Commissioner Baxter stated there was potential to capture the funds for a future project.
There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

ii. Tuition Assistance Program (Ordinance 2024-25)
Commissioner Davis asked about the requirement for employees to receive tuition assistance. Lisa
Markland stated there was a policy in place and gave details of how an employee can receive
tuition assistance.

Commissioner Miles asked if there was a cap on how many employes can take advantage of the
program. Staff stated there was a cap on the funds in the program and an employee can receive up
to $1,000 per fiscal year. The program was popular this year and was the first time the funds had
been depleted out and additional funding was needed.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter to approve Ordinance
2024-25.

24



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8, 2024

Mayor York stated the Town was moving forward and the budget may need to be increased for
employees to take advantage of the program.

There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

E. General
i. Clerk Position
Commissioner Baxter asked if the Board could see all the Clerk applications. Lisa Markland stated
staff was directed to contract the process through Developmental Associates and spoke about the
process.

Mayor York stated there would be a five-minute recess.
The meeting reconvened at 7:27pm.

ii. Appointed Boards
Commissioner Baxter stated several members needed to be appointed to the appointed boards. Lisa
Markland spoke about the advertising that was done. Commissioner Baxter asked to have the video
promoting the appointed boards posted to the website.

iii.  Gill Street Park
Commissioner Baxter asked for the feedback for Gill Street Park and wanted the results of the
survey at the February meeting. Sheila Long stated she would share the report with the Board and
could add it for discussion at a work session.

iv.  East Horton Street House
Commissioner Baxter stated the Town acquired two pieces of property and wanted the Board to
schedule a walk through of the property. Sheila Long stated she would coordinate with staff to
schedule a walk through.
BOARD COMMENTS
Commissioner Clark stated it was the first meeting of 2024 and the Board would work as a team
for the Town.

Commissioner Harrison thanked those in attendance at the meeting.

Commissioner Miles spoke about the Police Academy and encouraged those to look at the Town’s
website about information to be a vendor for events.

Commissioner Baxter stated severe weather was coming,.

Mayor York stated he was looking forward to doing the Town’s business in 2024.

25



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 8§, 2024

MANAGER’S REPORT
Lisa Markland gave an HR update.

Michael Clark gave a monthly development update.

CLOSED SESSION

The Board needed a motion to go into closed session under NC GS 143-381.1 1(a)(3) to consult
with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client
privilege between the attorney and the public body, which privilege is hereby acknowledged.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Miles to go into closed session.
There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

NOTE: In closed session, Commissioner Miles made a motion, second by Commissioner Clark to
come out of closed session. There was no discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Harrison made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter to direct the Town
attorney to file an action to condemn property. There was no discussion and the motion passed
unanimously.

Commissioner Miles made a motion, second by Commissioner Baxter to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13" day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

26



Zebulon Board of Commissioners
Work Session
Minutes
January 18, 2024

Present: Mayor Glenn York, Jessica Harrison, Quentin Miles, Beverly Clark, Amber Davis, Joe
Moore-Town Manager, Lisa Markland-Town Clerk, Chris Ray-Public Works, Mary Duffy-Public
Works, Bobby Fitts-Finance, Jacqui Boykin-Police, Michael Clark-Planning, Sheila Long-Parks and
Recreation, Kaleb Harmon-Communications, Sam Slater-Attorney

Absent: Shannon Baxter
Mayor York called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.
Mayor York stated Commissioner Baxter would not be in attendance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve the agenda. There
was no discission and the motion passed unanimously.

FY °25 REQUESTED BUDGETS
Joe Moore gave an overview of the items to be presented at the meeting and gave dates for budget
items.

PLANNING

Michael Clark spoke about the staff requests including a second Planning Technician and a
Transportation Planner. The duties of the two requested positions were detailed. The development
timeline was shown and how the two new staffing requests would help the department become more
efficient. Graphs were shown reflecting the population change and the staff needed to accommodate
the growth.

The capital requests for the budget included an affordable housing plan, adorable housing plumbing
program, smart-ride participation and water infrastructure review and upgrades. Mr. Clark gave
details about each request.

Commissioner Harrison asked how the affordable housing data would be gathered. Staff explained
the Town would look at surrounding counties for an affordable housing plan and that it would not be
isolated to just to Wake County.

Commissioner Harrison asked how the positions would fit in the career ladder for the Planning
Department. The details of the positions and the Department’s career ladder were given.

FIRE

Chris Perry showed a graph with the service drivers and future predictions. Some requested budget
items included the implementation of a second supervisor on each shift, six firefighters, and an
administrative assistant. Some line-item increases included uniforms, training, EMS building
maintenance, vehicle maintenance, medical exams and Wake County dispatch. Capital items included

27



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 18, 2024

the Fire/EMS Station construction, two fire engines, replacement of the 2005 pickup truck, access
key box system upgrades, turnout gear replacement and thermal imaging camera replacement.

Chris Perry spoke about the Wake County Fire tax district cost share and explained the Wake County
fire tax was collected in the unincorporated areas to fund fire protection in those areas. The current
rate for FY ‘24 was 36.95% and the projected rate for FY 25 was 35.76%,

PUBLIC WORKS

Chris Ray introduced Mary Duffy who gave a background about the department and spoke about their
growth-related pressures including residential development, stormwater expansion and department
management. Staff explained the growth was having impacts on staff and an Equipment Operator III,
Construction Plan Coordinator, Property Maintenance Technician, Stormwater Manager, a second
part-time summer landscaper, and a Public Works Assistant Director would be in the budget request.
Adding people also added additional resources for support and those needed items were detailed.

The Public Works shop rehab and improvements were detailed. Staff explained the department also
needed more office, training and meeting space. There was a request for $1,505,000 for construction
of the Public Works building. The Public Works yard was shown and staff spoke about the lack of
storage issues they were having. The CIP items included annual street paving, Shepard School signals,
N. Arendell improvements, W. Horton St. drainage, fleet replacements, and facilities and Mary Duffy
gave details about each.

Mayor York stated there would be a five-minute break.
The meeting was called back into session at 7:27pm.

MAIN STREET PROGRAM: NON-PROFIT CREATION

Teresa Piner spoke about the Main Street Program’s bylaws and Memorandum of Understand
(“MOU”). The Board gave feedback at their regular January meeting and Mrs. Piner spoke about the
amendments that were made.

The Board selections with MSD would be a minimum of nine members with three property owners,
three business owners and three members with a combination of downtown or abutting residents,
Town representatives, County representative, school representative, non-profit, civic group or faith-
based group. The next steps were shown.

Commissioner Davis asked about the Main Street Board terms. Staff explained there would be
staggered terms by office.

Commissioner Miles stated he wanted more citizen involvement than business and property owners.
Teresa Piner stated once staff reviewed the MSD the boundary may expand past what it currently
was.

Commissioner Clark stated the board members needed to be living within the Town limits. There was
discussion about the current makeup of the Main Street Board.

There was consensus to change the board makeup to residents within the corporate limits and ETJ.

2 28



Board of Commissioners
Minutes
January 18, 2024

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second by Commissioner Harrison to approve Main Street
Program: Non-Profit Creation as amended.

Commissioner Miles stated he had concerns about the restriction of only downtown business owners
being on the board. Teesa Piner stated as they grow there may need to be changes to the bylaws and
the business owners will want to be involved especially with a MSD since it would affect them the
most.

There was no further discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Clark made a motion, second my Commissioner Harrison to adjourn. There was no
discussion and the motion passed unanimously.

Adopted this the 13® day of February 2024.

Glenn L. York—Mayor

SEAL

Lisa M. Markland, CMC—Town Clerk

3 29



WAKE Board of Commissioners 161919 856 6180

Cou NTY

ANMETEE A

SHINICA THOMAS, CHAIR
SUSAN EVANS, VICE-CHAIR
VICKIE ADAMSON

MATT CALABRIA

DON MIAL

CHERYL STALLINGS

TARA WATERS

Ms. Lisa Markland

Town Clerk

Town of Zebulon

1003 North Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, North Carolina 27597

Dear Ms. Markland:

P.0O. Box 550 ¢ Raleigh, NC 27602

Fax 919 856 5699

January 3, 2024

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on January 2, 2024,
approved and accepted the enclosed tax report for the Town of Zebulon.

The attached adopted actions are submitted for your review; no local board action is required.

Enclosure(s)

Sincerely,

o <
e Gﬂyar
Clerk to the Board
Wake County Board of Commissioners

30



ONI SA004d sn 000000 €20T €T0T  €SSP6Y9000  €Z0T/80/11  0T'T8 000 0T'c8 000 000 €eceo8

IAVM 40 ALNNOD
HHL 40 ALTIOHLNV ONISNOH 000000 €20T €TOT  LOSS989000 €TOT/IT/IL  T9'8T 000 09¢ 000 09T 985198
ONI SAO0J SN 100000 £20C €T0T  €SSP6Y9000  €TOT/O/IT  8L'91E 000 08°8¢ 000 86'L8T 9£0¥98
SHSI'IN ODIgHAdd “ZATVZNOD 000000 €T0T €TOT  9LES869000  €TOT/OE/IT  S8'T 000 9T0 000 65T [9£698
ONI SA004 SN 000000 €T0T €T0T  €5S¥6¥9000  €TOT/VI/IT  96'1C8 000 000 000 96°1¢8 99L£98
ONI SO0 sn 100000 €T0C €T0T  £SS¥6¥9000  €TOT/OL/IL STOT 000 §ToT 000 000 L9ESO8
ONI SA004d SN 0$0000 €T0CT €T0T  €SS¥6¥9000  €TOT/0C/IT  LI'TI9°S 000 000 000 LT'T19°S 85€598
VN JINVY STHIVH ONd 000000 €T0T €T0T 6660569000 €ZOT/0E/TI1  TI'vTy 000 96°8¢ 000 96°68¢ §8e598
INVNLS “YIONIIID 000000 €T0T €TOT  896£569000 €TOT/LT/IL 016 000 €80 000 LT8 LL8Y98

_ SINNODJDV ALYAJOHUd

TVNAIAIANI

SINNODJDV

SSaANISNg

pajeqay sapaddory ¢ 0¥°6L0°T 000 05°€91 00°0 0616 HOJd STVLOLINS
OTTd LITTIEN NOTIVN 000000 €T0T €T0T 1611669000 €TOT/TUIL  99°L6I 000 L6°L] 000 69°6L1 V1Lv98
OTT@IMHI GAaNNOYd 000000 €20C €T0Z  1IE1669000 £T0T/OT/I1 #8608 000 £9°¢L 000 12°9¢L 991¥98
VN JINVE ONd 000000 €20T €T0CT  YTTI6S9000  €TOT/LO/IT  0OL'69 000 0L69 000 000 891¢£98
OTTIOMIAN HSIA 00ZL00 €T0T €T0T  LISOSI9000 €ZOT/LO/IT 161 000 16'1 000 000 Ly1¢98

OTTONILINVIN

% SA'IVS HOVINVAQY 00TLOO €TOT  €T0T  ¥8LLOLY0OO  €TOT/HV/IT  6T0 000 6C0 000 000 £66798

— SINNODDV SSANISNd

4dAL 904 uviA VAGINON dIvd  qdLvday ISAWAINI  ISI1 OVL HAGINAN

YINMO ONITTIE ¥vAA XVL INQOJDDV  SSIO0¥d TVIOL aarng ALV ALD AL¥3d0dd qLvaad

%
NOINd3Z W s
€207/0€/11 - £20T/10/11 ALINNOD
1 NV 9E:TS:01 £202/11/21 . PIVM
A9V INIL 2IVA UoneSIUIWPY XB], AJUN0D) LA R

31




d T NOIN9dZ 904
A1) 10j pareqay sapredorg o 07'SS9°‘8 000 00°LEE 0070 0Z'8I€’8 qQALVETY
TVIOL
SINNODDV
ALVIST TVIY
TVNAIAIANT
pajeqay sonaadoa g 1 SL'8ST 000 00°0 000 SL'8ST ¥Od STVLOLANS
ANNATD ‘NOSIOVI 000000 €T0T €TOT  L¥¥8LFO000  €TOT/TO/I1  SL'8ST 000 000 000 SL'8ST 8€9798
_ SINNODDV ALVLSH
TVIE TVAAIAIANI
SINNODDV
ALYAd0OUd
. TVNAIAIANI
paeqay sepaddod g 6 SO°LIEL 000 0S°€ELL 00°0 SSEVI‘L WO4 STVLOLANS
ddAL yod4 ¥vVIA HAIWNIN 4Ivad  adlvadd ISAYAINI  1SIT VL YAGINAN
WINMO ONITIHEI dvVIAX  XVL INNODDV  SSID0Ud 'IVIOL aanng ALVT ALD AL¥3doud ALvaad
ﬂ
ZOd:mMN SRR
£202/0€/11 - €20T/10/11 ALNNOD
z NV 9€:25:01 £20T/11/21 sHEIaQ 218Gy IAVYM
IOVd ANILL qIvd =c_uﬁ.5m:~m=:~< Xe], %HE-OU Q&&B r‘.\\“

32



SaNID [1V 10§ pajeqay sanuadoag 1HT €8'p95°78 00°0 $9°ST9'6  00°06 61°6V8CL :[e)oL, puean

AdAL jod WvIX YAGINNN AVAd  qILVETA ISHAAINI  ISFT DVL YAGINAN

YANMO ONITIII ¥vIA XVL INNODDV  SSAD0Yd TVIOL aaTng ALV ALD ALdAd0Odd ALvaTd

ﬁ
NO1INg4dZ

£C0T/0E/TT - €TOT/10/11
I NV 9¢:ZS:01 £20T/11/21 SHEId( NBGIY

q0Vvd ANIL aiva uonENSIUUPY XE], AJUN0D e

33




STAFF REPORT

ZEBULON 18 MONTH MEETING SCHEDULE
NORTH GAROLINA 2024 THROUGH JUNE 2025
FEBRUARY 13, 2024
Topic: FY '24 Board Meeting Schedule and Adjustments
Speaker: Joseph M. Moore Il, PE - Town Manager (if pulled from consent)
From: Lisa M. Markland — Town Clerk
Prepared by; isa M. Markland — Town Clerk
Approved Joseph M. Moore I, PE, Town Manager

Executive Summary:
Adjustments to the Board of Commissioners FY '24 meeting schedule.

Background:
Changes to the Board’s FY '24 Meeting Schedule include:

1. February 22, 2024: cancel Mini-Retreat
2. March 21, 2024: cancel Work Session
3. March 28, 2024: change Mini-Retreat to Work Session (starting at 5:00pm)

Discussion:
The Board will decide upon revisions to the FY ‘24 Meeting Schedule.

Policy Analysis:

The purpose of the statutes on Meetings of Public Bodies (“Open Meetings Law”) “is to
ensure that the business of the public be conducted in the view of the public so that the
people have the wherewithal to be better informed”."

The Board is required to fix the date, time and place for their regular meetings (§160A-
71).

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends revising the Fiscal Year 2024 Meeting Schedule as presented.

Attachments:
None

! Student Bar Association Board of Governors of School of Law, University of North Carolina at Chapel
Hill v. Byrd, 293 NC 594, 604 (1977).

43



ZEBULON STAFF REPORT

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
FEBRUARY 13, 2024

NORTH CAROLINA

Topic: Board Appointments
Speaker: Stacie Paratore, CMC, Human Resources Tech/Deputy Town Clerk
From: Lisa M. Markland, CMC, Human Resources Director/Town Clerk
Michael J. Clark, AICP, CZO, Planning Director
Prepared by: Stacie Paratore, CMC, Deputy Town Clerk
ichael J. Clark, AICP, CZO, Planning Director
Approved Joseph M. Moore, Il, PE, Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners will consider applicants interested in serving on appointed
boards.

Background:

The Board of Commissioners appoints members to Boards (Planning Board, Board of
Adjustment, and Parks and Recreation Advisory Board) who make recommendations or
decisions in their respective areas. Persons interested in serving on these appointed Boards
present applications to the Board of Commissioners for consideration.

Discussion:
The discussion amongst the Board is whom to appoint to the advisory boards.

Planning Board
There are four in-Town vacancies.

The Town received the following applications:
e David Lowry applied for re-appointment as an in-Town member.
¢ Michael Germano applied for re-appointment as an in-Town member.
e Latoya Carter submitted an application as an in-Town member.
e Sylvia Wheeler submitted an application as an in-Town member.

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
There is three vacancies.

The Town received an application from the following:
o Dexter De’Andre Privette applied for re-appointment.
¢ Kyla Virden submitted an application consideration.
e Dieva Hill submitted an application for consideration.
o David Field submitted an application for consideration.

Board of Adjustment
There are two in-town vacancies, one altemate ETJ vacancy, one ETJ vacancy, and one
alternate in-town vacancy.

The Town received an application from the following:
o Africa Privette submitted an application as an in-Town member.

44



ZEBULON STAFF REPORT

NORTH CAROLINA BOARD APPOINTMENTS
FEBRUARY 13, 2024

Tad Adams and Cathy Meeler are not interested in re-appointment, leaving the Board of
Adjustment with one member.

Policy Impact:

Municipalities are statutorily required to have a Planning Board to make recommendations on
applications for rezoning, text amendments, and comprehensive land use plan updates or
rewrites (§ 160D-604)

Municipalities are statutorily required to have a Board of Adjustment to hear appeals and
variances for development projects (§ 160D-303(b)). Zebulon's Unified Development
Ordinance lists processes and procedures to hear appeals (Article 2), and the powers, duties,
and composition of the Board of Adjustment (Section 10.2). A non-functioning Board of
Adjustment is in violation of state statues, and dilutes, possibly nullifies, the Town'’s
development standards and regulations by rendering them unenforceable.

Fiscal Impact:
NA

Staff Recommendation:
No recommendations on Board appointments.

Attachments:
1. Applications

45



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board piease list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment & Planning Board Parks & Recreation Advisory

Name w ’S (IOM(‘&I ;
Address 4{212_ Uim_,uurl kz“i(()ﬁ D;@AD\ A)C 275?7

’
E-mail f;‘:}‘{ ouar}zﬂl@a.ma;\.wn Date of Birth (month & Day) /14 / 97
Phone (Home) (Work), (Cell) LolY-419-3d1¢f

Employer ( ! eol/ o 1R Occupation R)M /Q,Aﬁ Mam.(c}z.’"

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits A ETJ Years in Zebulon < m

Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or

committee? Yes O No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).
Board/Commission/Committee From To
g Aosa 2620 CJ.JW]"‘

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yesé No_

Describe extent and meetings attended £} (|
Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? &n‘hf\m Sﬂ'"; [ ‘ﬁ_‘)’t\n- C“Q" C OS} -
. o‘l v
Hois Poa
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? lh el T Lr»vﬂ_,(h;).u:\ My \/a[ua

4@ WM«L boaftj du.r!_r% My 'lér\ur&-

What are your qualifications?

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address?

1 certify that the above information is correct. Iunderstand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. 1 also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation i§ application will remain on file for a period of 6-

months from the date of application.

Date _ Z/Q'l / 202> Signature

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paray,

at Town Hall, /1[_4%7; have any question call 919-823-1802,

10-19
46



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve,

Board of Adjustment . : lanning Board Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name Michael Germano "

Address 616 Golden Plum Ln Zebulon NC 27597

E-mail michael@germanoai.com Date of Birth (month & Day) 12/30
Phone (Home) n/a (Work) 9194048085 (Cell) 9196085363
Employer _Ger Mano Architecture + Interiors Occupation _Architect / Business Owner

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits / ETJ Yearsin Zebulon 5

Do you currently, or hay€ you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary),

Board/Commission/Committee From To
Planning Board 2020 Present
Main Street DAC Stakeholders Group 2020 2021

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes_/N;_

Describe extent and meetings attended All JPH and Planning Board meetings while serving on Board, BoC meetings

Whvdovouwanttoserveonthisboardorcomm_issi? ‘
I would like to continue serving this community to shape and guide the growth and development of our town

in a focused and deliberate manner, that is for the benefit of the greater community.

Whvwouldvoubeanassettothisboardorcommission?
I would continue to be an asset for this board by bringing my unique skills and perspectives as someone that
anning d

_works with pl ining departments and boards in communities across the state on a regular basis to the
planning board. I understand the impacts of smart growth and proper planning.
What are your qualifications? Degree in Town Planning, Architect, Business Owner

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address?
I would like to see the Planning Board continue to push for a greater diversity of housing, affordable housing,

Ll ] OF AMen = gl (] s

understand that any service, if app
months from the date of application.

Date  04/24/2023




TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

_____ Board of Adjustment _)(_mming Board _____ Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name LCL“'D Aa @ . C,aﬁ- KR
Address o‘?LfD\i) Sandare DWW Zebulen NC 31597
E-mail lC\de 123§ @ yahoo, (ore Date of Birth (month & Day) ol‘ i
Phone (Ho;e) AUa- L7105 IK  (Work) RS- F19- sl (Cell) _“1|9-71-0S1§
Employer DOCHE  Noewh Coviine Gy, Occupation e vo cadea
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits & ETJ Yearsin Zebulon 5 S

Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No X If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes& No__

Describe extent and meetings attended e Mu{'\ G - n b dren - tae b 4 v En g : hn

vilruoned oo Hudet- ot U e o A SC bt Wgn- 1 ~f yu.,émt o acthedace
Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? \Q Lie - el on gl by ,d z
‘. f';' 1y YN\ G,h l\’ "-ll\L Ly LYy Y“-‘C/ { "_Q_A"'. \_1\' {1 N n);ﬁ \:‘ 2 j 1 MY s (.., :'f’/s-— 4* J_ /’F ‘)U—r

Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? A, g | (7 nee A Sawilmm&lu k HAsd

Cmmum}y : \ﬁﬁ. s wzw&A adlop D F\qﬂw Lélﬂ“f\"j PPt
What are your ifications? & }i anved 2n wanievo o e o e b; ards t 1.-,»'44%(;44,3’,
o~d untdy CPH\Mt»b'

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? L}J‘( wih @—J e vel 5% et
1
lo~d usk -
1 certify that the above information is correct. Iunderstand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also

understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the date of application.

Date ’n :L\bplg Slgnahné hp /2 CQ 1,4

Please fill out the form completel and retum itto Stacte Pamtore at Town Hall. Ifyou have any question call 919-823-1802.
Confiemed 1129 2‘7‘ 10-19

48




TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

_2_ Board of Adjustment _1_P1anning Board 3*Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name SYLVIAT. WHEELER
Address 740 ROSE MALLOW DRIVE ZEBULON, NC 27597
E-mail SYLVIATWHEELER@GMAIL.COM Date of Birth (month & Day) _01/31
Phone (Home) (Work) (Cell) (410)805-0181
Employer KELLER WILLIAMS REALTY PLATINUM Occupation REALTOR
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits )( ETJ Years in Zebulon 3
Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No_ X If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).
Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes_X No

Describe extent and meetings attended _Attend meetimg at Town Hall as well government meeting

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? Board

Zebulon neighborhood

What are your qualifications? Aware of the neighborhood and listen to neighbors/individuals at meeting of needs/wants

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? Building a community for the youth to

have activities/training for usgae in life. Restaurants to actually sit down at and not just fast food-affordable housing

1 certify that the above information is correct. I understand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. 1 also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the date of application.

Date } / / O / 2 q Signature

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. If you have any question call 919-823-1802.

490-19



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers ( 1,2.3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

—Board of Adjustment Planning Board \/"_Parks & Recreation Advisory

Name ’_DCXTI'U/ ’—‘ 'M < .V‘C’}CL)
autress 49D Mandolin Pl ,2ebdn NE 97597
E-mail .ddﬂlﬂM hitond .cov Date of Birth (zonth & Day)

Phone (Home) A~ 33 OSSN (Worky cemql9Y-33-08SY
mployer U |l Tone 8 fonyed YW oceupesion ©uyed Divceey”
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits \/ ET) Years in Zebulon 3‘-‘

Do you currently, or&ve you previously, served on anry Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

BilS o TE 2050 2073 (Gt

Have you taken the opporfunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes__\/No .

Describe extent and meetings attended_(ON1 UV} 4 vin (Y‘-?&(LGML (e oddnsng by
Whydoyouwmtmseweonﬂﬁsbwdoreomnﬁssgn?“ﬁ"z et k- g)}’\”/UL_,
rsdinds of 2l NG T e do b avo e I rydents-

Whywmddyoubeanassettoﬂﬁsboardoroommission?ﬂﬁﬁ l(‘ﬂu&l‘-l.d@(, dﬂbufhﬁ UJ’LLL/
I e rsdit o Tobdo, e oufﬁu(»vli M@@Mm

Sekssdan rrma MEWJ b sty
&Gfmul youlit?to?e?the oard or "'&%b 4D

Cr s ol Vrgrwchan Ar a\l rescdots .
1 certify tlzkt;téfhe above ﬁg'b‘maﬁon is correct, 1 mdmtac}d tlSat this is an application to be considered for appointment ta a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or commitiee and that Jinal appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. [ alsc
understand that any service, if appointed, would be wi ompensaion: lication will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the dgte of application.

quﬂ)'l 23 ) Signature / .

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town f)alt. Ifyou have any question call 919-823-1802.

10-19
50



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment Planning Board I/Parks & Recreation Advisory

Name Y %\"CL( X \VAT7aEd'a)
aaess __OOA  |OOSESHrie CH, Todyplon, N 37897
E-mail ml_ﬁﬁkg.\ﬁ_"bﬁ._(x_@ C/Vha—‘. ] Date of Birth (month & Day) _° 1} &

Q
Phone (Home) ) 14 ﬂ MpU‘; (Work) ey 7] 7H A ﬁ } :i
Employer ey a Occupation m’ !!{ 4| Q[ & )Y :5
ETJ

§/bd
lo
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits )k Years in Zebulon ___, S

Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes |/ No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From

To
I8 pr:scﬂf

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? YesV No

Describe extent and meetings attended

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission?_i_mmm_(m_
WO Serve btrasSt T em o vesiens jp 7k IO

Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? LMLQLW&L&_
Qh&m'n? Lyents ond Jpve Plerning unds fpr famihES

What are your qualifications? Z 114 ) l&&ﬂ:t&}f Lok Je k.)S’

What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? vihe

1 certify that the above information is correct. Iunderstand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. 1 also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-
months from the date of application.

Date &I\S 1 @Lf) Signature \}v\lp V\A:A“\

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall, If you have any question call 919-823-1802.

10-19
51



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment Planning Board \/ Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name Y_\J.Q,U&J M. 4 ll(
Address 2] "‘[’% P)\UL,L LQ/LA, ]}\)% i -Z—bﬁ’.)ui(ﬂ’\ ‘QC 271 Sq_7

E-mail _ ®Dilova e s<soms Qﬁgmu L. o Date of Birth (month & Day) 12 I Y
Phone (Home) 14%Qp- 33671 (Work) (Cel) _ poane

Employer Towa 040 Qt:QDA«U( [ Occupation  HHR MQL,(T\;@ ‘

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits \/.L& ET) Years in Zebulon ).S

Do you currently, or have you previo\uﬂf, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes v/ No o

Describe extent and meetings attended () have N W uf. a «vvxze:hv% o i i

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? T el Like tp e paow uvolved

- AVMA C/DMW:L!\ -
@) . )
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? k(p w u..¢Q0l tae. e avud: Jo e boayal

e thoad <f) ove do susemel. anclise i Ll slitions o poblems . And wlild
love 1o by P . 404%‘ bcand .

What are your qidlifiéations?

wifb @ Concestiosfion 4 RSt gl 4.

4
What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address?  mene a,—f—&{fuc —AM{_

I certify that the above information is correct. I understaxd that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final “qppointment is ~the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without ipensgfion. This applicatjon will remain on file for a period of 6-

months from the date of application. /
Date 9 L%LI ‘[}og?; . Signature ) /é /

<:_________._—“' - e
Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. If you have any question call 919-823-1802.

10-19
52



TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment Planning Board \/ Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name Dwf(\ i? F }‘e,\ 3\
Address A0S N.\J A\L't':@; e\ & St Z(JOJN\', NC 275a7

_mai Vincedt Bl : :
E-mail Q\)‘O,Y incet Bo 9 ® OM__(}J‘» (o Date of Birth (month & Day) f"\u; i7
Phone (Home) 4 -375-4212 (Work) (Cell) A14-F20-0624
¢ —_ (zdods-] ,
Employer A&\)&Wﬁg P\as"‘“chW\ e, Occupation Machive Opef‘o\"*o"‘
Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits )( ETJ -Years in Zebulon l -t

Do you currently, or have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes No / If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes__ No _ﬁ

Describe extent and meetings attended (review a'n:) mcd\\\f}s o'v\\iue.\
Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? ‘T [ove +he Fown of Z&b/cb-\ a N} T wad b

meXe v (omminit o beter dace , T see +his foun  ag a_homebin i here paglé [ve

qu} WoﬂtL duv” \‘f\\hk/bw 9ot . TH iS ow clv“‘:)-fv serve. oW (emmw.TJ, :
Why would you beanassetct?) this board or commission? T~ |1ave_ iﬂeod vl the (oifnuww'i‘} i
work vell with ,pC»p‘Q L an altedin 0 LatlerDe, Savt chdl where -van&y valeg
are_ "I'Lf.. Corf!' of “I'Lﬂ; %\%«5 a\\s_“ P-""bl@h Solve th'/ u—g”-
What are yo;_r qualli 1cattif>ns? R w [ live fvorte &
1 vidudeer [oally, T am mavayendly om0 8 2 (owpKLorm pesdle 4 A<
What areas of concern v{dd you like to see'the Bord or Commission address? .‘“m}&,‘@-e’:} r@-((fwejoﬁ) , and o
Iv\slo’]ne, [ove B o~ CGHWW\&:

I certify that the above information is correct. Iunderstand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-

months from the date of application. ' /
Date © K/ 3 O/A 023 Signature & z ‘%

Please fill out the form completely and return it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. Ifyou have any question call 919-823-1802.

53
10-19




TOWN OF ZEBULON
Application for Board Appointments

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in more than one board please list them
by preference by using numbers (1,2,3). Please attach a copy of your driver’s license for proof of eligibility to serve.

Board of Adjustment ___ Planning Board ____Parks & Recreation Advisory
Name [ €y o Roninga  Fraesie
agpess _TIV] Brosty Lo Way |
Email g € QM_,,M_‘QJs 36S %qﬂ_% Datc of Birth (month & Day) |\ /LS /197 7
Phone (Home) (Work) ___ (@) 637 -GLSC
Employer -@&AMMXMQ&W Occupation UV d:e._r* (V2 n -'L:Jr

Do you live in the Zebulon Corporate Limits _ X ET] _ Years in Zebulon "

Do you currently, ot have you previously, served on any Town of Zebulon, or other municipal board, commission or
committee? Yes . No \/ If you answered yes, please list them below (use the back if necessary).

Board/Commission/Committee From To

Have you taken the opportunity to attend any previous board meetings prior to the notice of this vacancy? Yes__ No L—

Describe extent and meetings attended

Why do you want to serve on this board or commission? TO —(':un F y \ \ A, . _ < Ovmimun |i§3
Why would you be an asset to this board or commission? ' ,’ '@A 2955, © & j‘b"j

Real il fownm rows
2

| e I HC Yot
What areas of concern would you like to see the Board or Commission address? __Q_QC\K L © &
~ a8 Bment

1 certify that the above information is correct. 1 understand that this is an application to be considered for appointment to a Town of
Zebulon board, commission or committee and that final appointment is made by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners. I also
understand that any service, if appointed, would be without compensation. This application will remain on file for a period of 6-

months from the date of application.
F——
Signature 52‘//“ it -
¥

What are your qualifications? _

Date Q/ a

Please fill out the form completely and retwn it to Stacie Paratore at Town Hall. If you have any question call 919-823-1802.
10-19

54



- STAFF REPORT

ZEBULON ORDINANCE 2024-31
NORTH CAROLINA COASTAL CAROLINA RAILROAD, LLC
NORTH ALLEY AGREEMENT
FEBRUARY 13, 2024
Topic: Ordinance 2024-31 - Coastal Carolina Roadway — Memo of
Understanding and Budget Amendment
Speaker: Chris Ray, Director of Public Works
From: Chris Ray, Director of Public Works

Shannon Johnson, Economic Development Coordinator
Prepared by: hris Ray, Director of Public Works
Approved by oseph M. Moore I, PE, Town Manager

Executive Summary:
A Memo of Understanding with Coastal Carolina Railway, LLC (CCR) for public access and
utility installation in adjacent alley.

Background:
Staff have worked with the owners and potential investors in Whitley Galleries, and Coastal
Carolina Railway to resolve an ownership issue with the north alley over the past year

V\
20’ Alley
L N

- 2 o e s o B o Wader

Tkl ook’ W72 ]

gk izt n./;;.'Lgo

W - //" zln,-\z ‘T

%ﬂ%ﬁ.— y/;yn. ~ 5
Nt . NG ae i
,Y'““ e, L1 U&It !

Taueies Keaneth Exbes Clrustes W Estes “Qovin SEstes LIS

\{nfaa - Bajas _=hjaysy ey

’;B%M P 7’4‘3 F pan \)'éA Cowe “ktf?

© PatsgARoue - - “Poty R Zows. by .I.L'h"nﬁ-n >
B R AL LT - e f 38200 v < lejasf.

G Saneict e ‘ | S~ o

= 7 5

NE WO NS Miiey

The attached Memorandum of Understanding outlines the use and maintenance of the
alley by the Town of Zebulon, City of Raleigh, and property owners adjacent to the alley. Town
responsibilities include:

1. Construct a fence delineating the boundary between the alley and railroad right of way.
2. Install signage describing limited access approval from alley onto right of way.
3. Remove rail lines from alley and place on right of way.

If approved, the MOU will be forwarded to CCR for review and approval.
55



STAFF REPORT

ZEBULON ORDINANCE 2024-31
COASTAL CAROLINA RAILROAD, LLC
NORTH ALLEY AGREEMENT

FEBRUARY 13, 2024

Discussion:
The discussion before the Board is whether to approve the MOU and approve the budget
amendment (Ordinance 2024-31).

Policy Guidance:
Community infrastructure, such as utilities, transportation, technology, education, and housing
is Economic Development goal #3 of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

Fiscal Analysis:
Estimated cost to complete this work is $24,000.

Rehabilitated properties are estimated to increase Zebulon property tax revenue $26/square
foot, resulting in approximately an $18,000 increase in property taxes from renovating the
Whitley buildings. |
Non-rehabilitated buildings produce both an opportunity cost, from empty buildings not
generating sales tax from retail sales, and declining property taxes, from empty buildings
continuing to degrade and ultimately collapse.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approving the MOU with Coastal Carolina Railway, LLC., and appropriation
of funding to complete the necessary work through Budget Amendments.

Attachments:

1. MOU Agreement.
2. Ordinance 2024-31

56



WAKE COUNTY
NORTH CAROLINA
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU") is entered into this_____ day of

, 2024, by and between the TOWN OF ZEBULON, a North Carolina

municipal corporation (the “Town”), and CAROLINA COASTAL RAILWAY, LLC, a Virginia
limited liability company (the “CCR”), either of them referred to as a “Party” or collectively
as the “Parties.”
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town owns and maintains a 20’-wide public right-of-way parallel to
W. Vance Street and in the vicinity of S. Arendell Avenue, within the Town'’s corporate
limits, as depicted as “20” Alley” on that map Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Alley”); and

WHEREAS, CCR operates that certain variable width railroad right-of-way (the “Rail
Line”) owned by Norfolk Southern Railway Company (“NSR”) adjacent to and immediately
south of the Alley and has the authority, pursuant to a separate agreement with NSR, to,
among other things, administer the use and operation of the Rail Line within the Town’s
corporate limits as depicted in part on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Alley is adjoined to the north by privately-owned, commercial
properties from which various business have from time to time operated such properties
and improvements depicted in more detail on Exhibit A (such properties and
improvements, collectively, the “Commercial Buildings”); and

WHEREAS, the Alley has from time to time been utilized by (i) the owners of the

Commercial Buildings for the operation of their businesses and for ingress and egress

021848.0006-3876152v3 1- 57



therefrom and (ii) the Town to provide public access to and from the Commercial Buildings
and to collocate municipal utility and stormwater lines and facilities; and
WHEREAS, some, but not all, of the Commercial Buildings encroach upon the Alley,

as depicted on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, a railroad spur track lies within the Alley which, from inspection by
Town staff, appears to have historically served the Commercial Buildings and allow access
to the Rail Line for business operated therefrom (the “Spur”); the Spur is currently in
disrepair and of no practical value to the Town, its citizens, various owners of the
Commercial Buildings or CCR; and

WHEREAS, the Town desires to remove the Spur and facilitate the extension and
improvement of various municipal utility and stormwater services for public and private
properties in the vicinity of the Rail Line;

WHEREAS, the Town and CCR desire to clarify the rights and obligations of each
party with respect to the Spur, the conditions for removal thereof, and the installation and
maintenance of municipal utility infrastructure in the Alley and within the vicinity of the
Rail Line; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this MOU to set forth the terms and
conditions between the Parties as to the foregoing.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and premises set forth
herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Incorporation. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated by this

reference and made a part hereof.

021848.0006-3876152v3 58



2.

Spur Removal. The Town may remove the Spur at any time after the date

hereof; subject, however, to the following conditions:

a.

021848.0006-3876152v3

All Spur materials removed and salvaged shall be placed within the Rail Line
right-of-way immediately adjacent to the Alley (in an area not to materially
interfere with the regular operation of CCR’s business);

The Town shall fill, compact, and grade, as reasonably necessary, the land
affected by such removal activities to restore such areas so that they may be
utilized in a manner consistent with Section 4 herein below;

Within ninety (90) days of removal of the Spur, and subject to weather
conditions, the availability of labor and materials, the Town shall install a
commercial grade split-rail fence substantially in the style and dimensions
depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference
(the “Boundary Fence”); such Boundary Fence to be located along the
boundary of the Alley and the Rail Line as shown on Exhibit A;

The Boundary Fence may, in the Town’s discretion, include access gates for
parallel crossing to existing stormwater drainage and sanitary sewer line
infrastructure (the “Existing Utilities”);

Except as provided herein, the Boundary Fence shall be maintained and
replaced at no cost to CCR, it being agreed by the Parties that the Boundary
Fence may be removed by the Town temporarily, from time to time, to
facilitate maintenance to the Boundary Fence and/or the Existing Utilities;
provided, however, that any maintenance activities under this Section 2 that

are estimate to last more than five (5) consecutive calendar days shall

59



require the prior written consent of CCR, such consent not to be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; and

f. Inno event shall the installation of the Additional Infrastructure or Alley
Improvements commence prior to the removal of the Spur and the
installation of the Boundary Fence.

3. Public Utility Infrastructure. Town and CCR agree the location of public
utilities and infrastructure within the Alley are necessary to adequately preserve and
protect the public rights of way and privately-owned improvements within the Town, to
wit:

a. Existing Facilities. The Parties acknowledge that the Town has installed the
Existing Facilities within the Alley and the Rail Line as generally depicted on
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. The Town
and the City of Raleigh (“COR”), pursuant to a separate agreement with the
Town relating to the maintenance thereof, retain all rights and obligations for
the maintenance, repair and replacement of the Existing Infrastru;ture.

b. Planned Sanitary Sewer Facilities. CCR consents to and shall not obstruct the
installation, maintenance, and repair of a proposed public 8” sanitary sewer
line and associated lateral service facilities to the existing Commercial
Buildings by third party contractors as designed and permitted by Green
Engineering with COR (the “New Sewer Line”). As a condition to such

consent, all construction activities relating to the New Sewer Line shall be at

no cost to CCR and shall be staged and executed wholly within the Alley. The

021848.0006-3876152v3 60



Town shall insure all contractors performing such work are licensed in the
State of North Carolina and bonded for this type of work.

c. Planned Stormwater Facilities. The Town agrees to provide CCR prior
written notice of future stormwater improvements, including, but not limited
to, complete design and permitting plans to be installed in or about the Alley
(the “New Stormwater Facilities”), presently contracted with Kimley-Horn.
The Town further agrees the construction activities relating to the New
Stormwater Facilities will be performed at no cost to CCR by contractors
licensed in the State of North Carolina and bonded for this type of work.

d. Planned Electrical Facilities. The Town agrees to provide CCR prior written
notice of planned electrical facility improvements (the “New Electrical
Facilities” and, with the New Stormwater Facilities, the New Sewer Line and
the Existing Facilities, collectively, the “Utility Facilities”) to the Alley which
may serve the Commercial Buildings, among other improvements. The Town
agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts to design the New Electrical
Facilities such that all such infrastructure shall be below surface except for
pad mounted transformers. CCR acknowledges that Duke Energy Progress,
or its successor, would prosecute the installation and maintenance of the
New Electrical Facilities, and, therefore, the Town intends only to use
commercially reasonable best efforts to ensure the New Electrical Facilities

conform to the provisions of this Section 3.d.

021848.0006-3876152v3 61



The Town further acknowledges and agrees that work performed relating to the Utility
Facilities and contracted by or through the Town shall conform to all applicable laws, codes
and ordinances and shall not materially disturb the use and operation of the Rail Line.

4, Alley Use & Maintenance. CCR consents to the use of the Alley by the general

public for ingress and egress to and from the Commercial Buildings, and otherwise by the
Town, the COR and their employees, agents and contractors as permitted pursuant to the
terms of this MOU, but only to the extent consistent with this MOU. The Alley may also be

used by the owners of the Commercial Buildings, their employees, agents, contractors and

invitees, for loading and unloading, maintenance to the Commercial Buildings, but not for
extended, overnight or other long-term parking. The Town agrees to install, at no cost to
CCR, standard signage indicating the foregoing use limitations of the Alley. Additionally,
the Town may, at its sole cost and expense, improve (including, but not limited to, laying
substrate, gravel and asphalt) the Alley, and shall maintain the same in a manner consistent
with its policies and procedures implemented and modified from time to time.

5. Commercial Building Encroachments. CCR and the Town acknowledge and
consent to the existing encroachments by the Commercial Buildings within the Alley
(collectively, the “Existing Encroachments”), such Existing Encroachments inc